
 

Environmental Services Commission 
Minutes 
www.cityoftacoma.org 

via Zoom Meeting  
 

November 14, 2024 
 
 

Chair Beaumier called the meeting to order at 4:07 p.m. 
 
Commission Members Present:   Chad Sutter, Mindi Kellar, Karen DiNicola, Esther Beaumier, 

Marty Campbell (arrived at 4:35 p.m.), Jonathan Paul, and 
Eric Sachs. 

Commission Members Absent: Bruce Martin, David Dailey, Grant Middleton, Matthew Benedict, 
and Jeff Paradise. 

 
Chair Beaumier noted a quorum was not present. She stated they would postpone the approval of 
the minutes until a quorum was achieved.  
 
Public Comment 
The public comment period is reserved for items on the current agenda only. Comments will be 
limited to the amount of time announced by the chair, presiding officer, or staff liaison, no more 
than five minutes per person per meeting. 
 
No Public Comment was received. 
 
Discussion followed regarding the recent citizen letter forwarded to the Commission and that it 
would not be discussed under Public Comment as it does not pertain to any current agenda item. 
Staff noted that it is at the Chair’s discretion to add it to a future meeting and if that was done, 
they would ensure the citizen had the opportunity to attend. 
  
Budget Adoption Process 
Christina Curran, Rates and Budget Assistant Division Manager, stated the ordinances for Solid 
Waste rates and Stormwater/Wastewater rates are scheduled to go before the City Council for 
first reading on November 19 and final reading on December 3, 2024. She stated the City’s 
Budget Office will be bringing forward the Biennial Budget, which includes the Environmental 
Services Department budget, to the City Council for consideration on December 3, 2024. The 
budget must be adopted by year’s end. She noted that this has been an unusual rate and budget 
year.  
 
Public Meetings Act Refresher/Training 
Kurt Fremont, Business Operations Division Manager, reminded commissioners that they are 
required to complete the five online courses for Open Public Meetings Act training. He noted 
completion certificates should be emailed to staff to retain. Short discussion followed regarding 
difficulties encountered printing the certificate and whether completions are being tracked. 
 

http://www.cityoftacoma.org/


Environmental Services Commission Minutes    Page 2 
November 14, 2024 

2025 Work Plan Development Process 
Mr. Fremont stated the City has a biennial budget, noting this year was a rate year and next year 
will be more focused on education of the utility to prepare commissioner for the next rate year. 
He stated there will be no meeting in December, noting staff will be meeting with the current 
Commission Chair and Vice Chair December 4 to go over potential topics as well as Commission 
goals and objectives for the coming year, discuss what worked well in 2023/2024, what can we do 
better, and what to accomplish in 2025. He then asked Commissioners to send any questions, 
comments, or suggestions to him or April Larsen. He reminded Commissioners that January will 
be a hybrid meeting and encouraged those that can attend in-person to do so.  
 
Discussion followed regarding the following:  

1. Commissioner Sutter inquired about Commission vacancies and expiring terms. 
a. Staff stated there are currently three vacant positions on the Commission, and two 

current members’ terms will be expiring at the end of the year. Commissioners can 
reapply and will continue to serve until a replacement is selected.  

2. Commissioner Sutter suggested having a hybrid meeting with the TPU board.  
3. Commissioner DiNicola suggested a hybrid meeting with the Planning Commission. 
4. Commissioner DiNicola requested to add a standing agenda item for Staff Follow-up to 

ensure requests from prior meetings are addressed timely. 
a. Staff will be meeting with the Chair and Vice Chair to discuss standing items and 

how best to address Commissioner requests. 
5. Chair Beaumier requested that whenever possible, Environmental Services staff provide 

the Commission the same presentations they are giving to City Council, to help the 
Commission have a better understanding of the work ES does. She stated an example 
was Interim Director Smyth’s presentation to City Council highlighting all of the 
Department’s recent successes.  

6. Chair Sutter asked about future opportunities for the Commission to collaborate with other 
groups such as Tacoma Public Utilities and Solid Waste. Chair Beaumier added that 
understanding the structures of Public Utility Board and how they interact with the 
Commission would help. 

a. Staff will look at those types of opportunities. 
7. Mr. Fremont requested feedback on whether to continue with the hybrid meeting option. 

a. Consensus of commissioners present was to continue with the hybrid meeting 
option. 

8. Commissioner Paul asked about having someone from the Department of Ecology come 
to a future meeting to have a conversation about development costs. 

a. Staff will look into having someone come in 2025. 
9. Commissioner Paul requested links to the recent City Council presentations by ES staff. 

a. Staff will send links to those meetings. 
 

Commissioner Campbell arrived here, at 4:35 p.m. 
 
Chair Beaumier noted the presence of a quorum and requested to bring the approval of the 
minutes forward for consideration. 
 
Approval of the minutes of August 8, September 12, and special meeting of 
September 30, 2024 
 Commissioner Campbell moved to approve the minutes of August 8, September 12, and 
special meeting of September 30, 2024, as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Sachs. A 
voice vote was taken and carried. The minutes were approved by all present. 
 



Environmental Services Commission Minutes    Page 3 
November 14, 2024 

2025 Work Plan Development Process (continued) 
Discussion continued regarding the following items: 

1. Fats, Oils, & Grease Program 
a. Commissioner DiNicola asked about the fats, oils, and grease program and 

issues with local restaurants. 
i. Staff stated they are trying to maintain and get compliance from local 

restaurants as well as enforcing the City’s Plumbing Code without 
adversely impacting our systems. Staff is working with Permitting staff on 
ways to make things easier for restaurants. Staff will present to the 
Commission after their Continuous Improvement Process has been 
completed. 

2. Glass Recycling 
a. Commissioner DiNicola asked why the City of Tacoma no longer recycles glass. 

Noting the recent flier residents received from Ridwell offering to pick up 
residential glass for a $10 monthly fee, she asked to hear from Solid Waste staff 
as to whether this charge could be deducted from City pickup fees since the City 
is no longer providing the service and are landfilling our glass. 

i. Staff stated they have been looking for alternatives such as taking glass 
to Portland, Oregon, but would need the appropriate trailer or a contractor 
to do the hauling and that is still several weeks out. Customer rates are 
based upon a cost-of-service analysis for providing services. 
Reimbursements for service provided by others does not fit within that 
financial framework. 

ii. Chair Sutter highly encouraged others to a visit to a glass recycling facility 
and learn that glass is a costly thing to recycle. 

3. Personnel Costs & Cost Cutting Measures 
a. Commissioner DiNicola stated going over the budget is important, but there is a 

part of the Charter on oversight and input on policy and priority setting. She 
asked to hear more about cost cutting measures the department is doing and 
proposing. 

i. Staff stated the City Manager requires departments to do a cost cutting 
exercise every two-years to evaluate programs and services and try to 
identify efficiencies and potential impacts. This year staff looked at a 6% 
reduction. Staff stated there are reasons these proposals were not shared 
with the Commission. Commission members are briefed on the proposals 
staff thinks are likely to be approved, then briefed again on proposals 
included in the Proposed City Manager budget and ultimately adopted by 
Council. 

ii. Mr. Fremont stated the department did cut three positions this year. 
b. Vice Chair Sutter asked if the City has looked at leasing vehicles versus making 

capital purchases. 
i. Staff stated they will investigate this option further. 

c. Commissioner Campbell requested staff present some of the cost cutting 
measures the department has done over the past decade, including removing 
equipment and services for example.  

d. Commissioner Paul wants to better understand of the department’s staffing 
model and organizational structure, with the goal to offer the best possible 
service at the lowest possible cost. He also asked to tour some of the City’s 
facilities to see the direct labor operations, how they function, and their structure.  

i. Staff stated that 75% of employees in the department provide “direct” 
services and 24% support those providing “direct” services.  



Environmental Services Commission Minutes    Page 4 
November 14, 2024 

ii. Staff will ensure all new commissioners get the education on each of the 
utilities. In planning 2025 work plan, staff and Commission chairs may 
look at providing tours to new commissioners and others interested either 
before or after a regularly scheduled meeting in 2025 verses have an 
entire meeting around a tour. 

4. Discretionary Legal Costs 
a. Commissioner DiNicola asked about discretionary legal costs spent by the 

department. 
i. Staff stated legal costs cannot be easily tracked by specific court cases. 

Based on the easy to pull data available through October, the department 
has spent approximately $1.27M since 2018 in legal expenses, 
approximately $500K on a WSDOT case, and approximately $150K on 
the PSNGP appeal. Staff noted these numbers do not include internal 
City legal and department staff costs and are only using data available 
through October 2024. The figures do not represent a comprehensive 
analysis but rather a quick review based on data available at the time. 

5. EnviroTalk & Outreach Efforts estimate. 
a. Commissioner DiNicola stated that the EnviroTalk newsletter needs to be 

reviewed for quality, ES utility relevancy, and content. She requested a 
discussion about retooling the publication, reducing its size, and highlighting calls 
to action (like “don’t flush wipes” and “keep storm drains clear of leaves”) to make 
it more effective and less costly. She also wanted to know the costs of 
developing, printing, and mailing the newsletter. 

i. Staff stated they will continue to look for ways to improve the newsletter, 
and significantly reduce the cost of printing and mailing it. Future 
newsletters will be shorter and will no longer include the garbage 
collection stickers. The template is being looked at to reduce costs. In 
2024, the total cost for printing and mailing the newsletter was $120K. 
Staff also noted that in 2025 they are looking into an “opt out” option. 

b. Commissioner DiNicola asked about merchandise giveaways and whether the 
department has a budget or receives grant funding for this.  

i. Staff stated there is not a budget and described this as a “de minimis” 
expenditure. Merchandise is handed out at various city events, and 
merchandise from “If it hits the ground, it hits the sound” campaign and 
TAGRO are used to market and generate goodwill. 

c. Commissioner DiNicola asked if the City get grants for educational programs like 
“If it hits the ground, it hits the sound” campaign or is otherwise coordinating with 
Puget Sound Partnership’s education programs. 

i. Staff stated they did not but do give 1% to arts programs. 
 
Commissioner Other Items of Interest 
Mr. Fremont relayed that Interim Director Smyth expressed his gratitude to the Commission for 
their participation and support in this year’s budget process. 

  
Adjournment 
The meeting was declared adjourned at 5:24 p.m. 
  


